
 
 

Shelton City Council 

Meeting Agenda – Virtual Platform 

May 3, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 

• Roll Call 

• Late Changes to the Agenda 
 
B.  Council Reports 
 
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1.  Vouchers numbered 107300 through 107307 in the total amount of $2,936.62 

2.  Vouchers numbered APA000340 through APA000388 in the total amount of $202,774.73 

3.  Payroll warrants numbered 3911 through 3912 and 8546 through 8587 and 8588 through 8690.  Warrants 

     107203 through 107222 in the amount of $807,348.20 

4.  Payroll warrants numbered 3913 and 8691 through 8733 and 8734 through 8837.  Warrants 107256  

     through 107275 in the amount of $853,145.62 

5.  Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of April 5, 2022 

• Study Session of April 12, 2022 

  

D.  Presentations 
     1.  Proclamation – National Public Works Week 
     2.  Habitat for Humanity 
 
E.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
 
F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
     No business items. 
 
G.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 

1.  YMCA Purchase and Sale Agreement – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
     2.  Resolution No. 1231-0222 ILA with Mason Transit Authority – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill 

3.  Resolution No. 1235-0322 Approval of City Manager Contract – Presented by Administrative Services 
          Director Michelle Sutherland 
     4.  Hearing Examiner Services Contract – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
     5.  LTAC Appointments – Presented by City Clerk Donna Nault 
      
H.  Administration Reports 
      1.  City Manager Report 
 
I.  New Items for Discussion 
 
J.  Announcement of Next Meeting – May 17, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
K.  Adjourn 



  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Public Participation 
The meeting can be viewed at: masonwebtv.com 

The public can provide comments by: 
Email:  jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov  Telephone: (360) 432-5105 

Joining the Zoom meeting by clicking on the link posted on the City Council’s webpage 
Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

mailto:jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov


 

Updated 4/26/2022 
 

 
2022 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 

Tues. 5/10 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 

• FCS Group - ER&R Presentation 

Packet Items Due:  
5/6 @ noon 

Tues. 5/17 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

• March Financial Status Report 
Presentation 

• Homelessness Survey 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 1984-0222 Shelton Municipal 
Code Chapter 20.08 and 20.64 

• Ordinance No. 1983-0122 Animal Control 

• Ordinance No. 1987-0422 Ch. 20.47.010 
Related to Camping on Private Property 

Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:  
5/6 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 5/24 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 

• Stormwater Management Plan 

Packet Items Due:  
5/20 @ noon 

Tues. 6/7 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
5/27 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 6/14 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 

• Public Works Laydown Yard 

Packet Items Due: 
6/10 @ noon 

Tues. 6/21 
5:45 p.m. 

SMPD Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
6/10 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 6/21 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

• April Financial Status Report 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

Packet Items Due: 
6/10 – 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 4/26/2022 
 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Tues. 6/28 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
6/24 @ noon 

Tues. 7/5 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  
 

Packet Items Due: 
6/24 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 7/12 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
7/8 @ noon 

Tues. 7/19 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

• May Financial Status Report 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:  
7/8 – 5:00 p.m. 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 

• More Standing Committees by the Council  

• Water and Sewer Fee Schedule Revisions (Ordinance removing rates from SMC) 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1968-0321 Water Comp Plan Adoption        











 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

April 5, 2022 – 6:00 p.m. 

Virtual Platform 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL 

Councilmembers: Personnel: 
Mayor Eric Onisko City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Joe Schmit City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Community Development Director Mark Ziegler  
Miguel Gutierrez City Engineer Ken Gill 
Kathy McDowell Administrative Services Director Michelle Sutherland 
Deidre Peterson   
Sharon Schirman 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance: City Manager Niten 
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – All present 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
None. 
 
Mayor Onisko – The public is able to make comments during the Public Comment period, as well as on 
any items listed on the business or the action agendas. When making a public comment you will need to 
state your full name and whether you reside within City limits, within Mason County or reside elsewhere. 
There are three options for the public to participate in the meeting: (1) join the Zoom meeting by clicking 
the link on the city’s website, (2) email jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov, or (3) by calling City Manager Jeff Niten 
at (360) 432-5105. 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
1.  Voucher number 107233 in the amount of $302.34 
2.  Vouchers numbered APA000055 through APA000114 in the total amount of $83,702.13 
3.  Vouchers numbered APA000115 through APA000181 in the total amount of $300,406.95 
4.  Vouchers numbered APA000182 through APA000214 in the total amount of $177,613.71 
5.  Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of March 1, 2022 

• Study Session of March 8, 2022 

• Business Meeting of March 15, 2022 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember McDowell and seconded by Deputy Mayor Schmit to approve 
the Consent Agenda as publish. Passed. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
1. Proclamation – Child Abuse Prevention Month 
 
Mayor Onisko read the Proclamation. Shelly Willis, Director of Family Education & Support Services, 
spoke regarding their organization and child abuse prevention strategies. 



 

City Council – Meeting Minutes 
April 5, 2022 – Virtual Platform Page 2 of 3 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
Dean Jewett 
 
BUSINESS AGENDA 
1. Resolution No. 1227-0222 EMS Replacement Levy – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
 City Manager Niten discussed the resolution allowing an EMS replacement levy for the August 
 2022 election. Discussion followed. No public comment. 
 
A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Schmit and seconded by Councilmember Peterson to place 
Resolution No. 1227-0222 on the City Council Action Agenda for April 19, 2022 for further consideration. 
Passed. 
 
2. Resolution No. 1233-0322 Surplus of 218 S 5th Street – Presented by Community Development 
 Director Mark Ziegler 
 
 Community Development Director Mark Ziegler provided an overview of a City owned parcel and the 
 abatement process. Discussion followed. No public comment.  
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Deputy Mayor Schmit to place 
Resolution No. 1233-0322 on the April 19, 2022 City Council action agenda for further consideration. 
Passed. 
 
3. Ordinance No. 1985-0322 Sign Regulations – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten  
  
 City Manager Niten reviewed proposed changes to Shelton Municipal Code 20.38. Discussion 
 followed. No public comment. City Clerk Nault provided the first reading of Ordinance No. 1985-0322. 
 
A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Schmit and seconded by Councilmember Gutierrez to place 
Ordinance No. 1985-0322 on the April 19, 2022 action agenda for further consideration. Passed. 
 
4. Ordinance No. 1986-0322 Graffiti Abatement – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
 City Manager Niten reviewed a new code section that defines and identifies graffiti and 
 required abatement. Discussion followed. No public comment. City Clerk Nault provided the first 
 reading of Ordinance No. 1986-0322. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Deputy Mayor Schmit to place 
Ordinance No. 1986-0322 on the April 19, 2022 action agenda for further consideration. Passed. 
 
ACTION AGENDA 
1. MACECOM Facilities Lease – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
 
 Deputy Mayor Schmit recused himself from the discussion due to his  position on the MACECOM 
 legislative and governing board. Community Development Director Ziegler discussed the 
 MACECOM lease renewal agreement with the city. No discussion. No public  comment. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Peterson to approve 
the MACECOME Facilities Lease as presented. Passed. 
 
2.  Resolution No. 1229-0222 Acknowledging Receipt of Petition for Annexation – Presented by 
 Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
 
 Community Development Director Ziegler discussed a proposed annexation for an area in Peacock 
 Ridge. Discussion followed. No public comment. City Clerk Nault provided the reading of 
 Resolution No. 1229-0222. 
 



 

City Council – Meeting Minutes 
April 5, 2022 – Virtual Platform Page 3 of 3 

A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Schmit and seconded by Councilmember Peterson to approve 
Resolution No. 1229-0222 accepting a proposed annexation petition of the Peacock Ridge Area. Passed. 
 
 
3. Resolution No. 1230-0222 Western Gateway Project Award – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill 
 
 City Engineer Gill reviewed the bid and award process for the Western Gateway Project. Discussion 
 followed. Public Comment: Dale Campbell, Cameron Settlemeyer and Cheryl Stewart. City Clerk 
 Nault provided a reading of Resolution No. 1230-0222.  
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Deputy Mayor Schmit to adopt 
Resolution No. 1230-0222 as presented. Passed. 
 
4. Resolution No. 1234-0322 Western Gateway Engineering Contract Amendment No. 4 – Presented 
 by City Engineer Ken Gill 
 
 City Engineer Gill reviewed a contract amendment to the Western Gateway Engineering project. 
 Discussion followed. No public comment. City Clerk Nault provided the reading of Resolution No. 
 1234-0322. 
 
A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Schmit and seconded by Councilmember Peterson to adopt 
Resolution No. 1234-0322 as presented.  Passed. 
 
5. Bargaining Agreement with Customer Service – Presented by Administrative Services Director 
 Michelle Sutherland 
 
 Administrative Services Director Sutherland reviewed the negotiated three-year City and 
 IAMAW Woodworkers collective bargaining agreement. No discussion. No public comment. 
 
A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Schmit and seconded by Councilmember Gutierrez to approve 
the Agreement between the City of Shelton and the IAMAW Woodworkers representing all full-time and 
part-time employees in Customer Service for the period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 
2024. Passed. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT – City Manager Jeff Niten 
▪ April 16, 2022 – Downtown Spring Clean Up Project 
▪ SC Johnson Plastic Recycling Program 
▪ Review Looking Ahead 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
Study Session – April 12, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
City Council meeting – April 19, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 7:14 p.m. 
 
 
___________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko  City Clerk Donna Nault 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Study Session Special Meeting Minutes 

April 12, 2022 – 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Platform 

 

City Council - Study Session 
Special Meeting Minutes 
Virtual Platform – April 12, 2022 Page 1 of 1 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  

Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Eric Onisko City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Joe Schmit City Clerk Donna Nault   
James Boad   
Miguel Gutierrez 
Kathy McDowell   
Sharon Schirman  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – Absent: Councilmember Deidre Peterson 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember McDowell and seconded by Deputy Mayor Schmit to excuse the 
absence of Councilmember Peterson. Passed. 
 
STUDY AGENDA 
1. Ordinance No. 1983-0122 Animal Control – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 

 
City Manager Niten discussed changes to Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 7.02.010. Discussion 
followed. 

 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 6:49 p.m. 
 
 

 

_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko     City Clerk Donna Nault  



 

City of Shelton 
National Public Works Week Proclamation 

 
May 15 – 21, 2022 

 
“Ready and Resilient” 

 
WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities, emergency management, and services 

that are of vital importance to sustainable and resilient communities and the public health, high quality of life, 

and well-being of the people of Shelton; and 

WHEREAS, these infrastructures, facilities, and services could not be provided without the dedicated efforts of 

public works professionals, who are federally mandated first responders, and the engineers, managers, and 

employees at all levels of government and the private sector, who are responsible for rebuilding, improving, 

and protecting our nation’s transportation, water supply, water treatment and solid waste systems, public 

buildings, and other structures and facilities essential for our citizens; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders, and children in Shelton to gain knowledge of 

and to maintain an ongoing interest and understanding of the importance of public works first responders and 

public works programs in their respective communities; and, 

WHEREAS, the year 2022 marks the 62nd annual National Public Works Week sponsored by the American 

Public Works Association/Canadian Public Works Association. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, I, Mayor Eric Onisko, do hereby designate the week May 15 – 21, 2022 as 

National Public Works Week; I urge all citizens to join with representatives of the American Public Works 

Association and government agencies in activities, events, and ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our 

public works professionals, engineers, managers, and employees and to recognize the substantial 

contributions they make to protecting our national health, safety, and quality of life. 

SIGNED this 3rd day of May 2022, in Shelton, Washington. 

 

       

        ___________________________________________ 
        Eric Onisko, Mayor 



Scotty Mills President of the Board

Marty Crow Executive Director/COO



Who We Are

What We Do

Why We Do It

How You Can Help

Mission Statement:
Habitat for Humanity of Mason County is a faith-based 
housing ministry partnering with the community to 
improve, maintain and build affordable quality housing 
for those in need.

Let's build a stronger community - together!



Established in Mason County in 1996

Mission Statement

Habitat for Humanity of Mason County is a faith-based 

housing ministry partnering with the community to 

improve, maintain and build affordable quality 

housing for those in need.

Let's build a stronger community - together!



Habitat for Humanity believes that all 

people deserve a simple, decent, 

affordable place to live.

Since the Habitat for Humanity Mason County Affiliate first began in 1996, Habitat 

Mason has built more than 35 homes in Mason County by partnering with families, 

individuals, congregations, businesses, civic groups and other organizations to lend a 

hand up, not a hand out, to those in need of better housing. 

The Home Preservation Program has improved 100’s of homes throughout Mason County, 

improving the quality of life for many members of our community.    

Let's build a stronger community - together!



We Build and Renovate Homes!
We partner with our community to build and renovate homes to help 

provide the opportunity of home ownership for those in need.  We help 

families in need realize their goal of home ownership.  We believe a 

strong family starts with a quality, safe and affordable home.

We Enhance Lives!
Our Home Preservation Program helps community members in need, 

improve and maintain their homes with maintenance and safety 

improvements.  We partner with homeowners, our volunteers and the 

community to help homeowners maintain a safe, decent and affordable 

home.

We Help the Environment!
Both of our Habitat Store locations sell donated building materials and 

household goods in new or gently used condition.  This rescues thousands 

of tons from our landfills and sides of our roads every year.    

Let's build a stronger community - together!



Three Primary Habitat Mason challenges!

1. Land Acquisition & Development cost increases

2. Construction Cost Increases

3. How to fund our mission in this accelerating 

economy. (Community Partnership)

Lake Boulevard project overview 

Let's build a stronger community - together!



Land Acquisition & Development Costs

Increase cost of lot/land purchases.

Undeveloped lots in the City of Shelton have doubled in 

cost over the last five years $25K - $50K.

Increase costs of development.

Recent small lot (30’ X 100’) development quote for; dig 

out, water/sewer taps and backfill $38K.

Infrastructure, capital & Permit fees for City, County and PUD.

Current project costs for City and PUD permits, fees and 

capital assessments is $15K for a small two-bedroom home 

on Harvard Ave. which is about 12-15% of our total 

construction costs.

Let's build a stronger community - together!



3031 Square foot house in Boise, ID

2019 2020 2021 % increase

Cost of House 471,500$      505,000$      746,671$      58%

Concrete 15,747$         17,190$         32,088$         104%

Lumber 29,000$         32,000$         104,899$       262%

Trusses 12,000$         13,923$         29,500$         146%

Drywall 21,492$         24,057$         26,976$         26%

Plumbing, Electrical, HVAC 28,416$         32,380$         42,241$         49%

Paint 9,800$           11,852$         16,495$         68%

Trim & Cabinets 31,302$         38,899$         52,690$         68%

Appliances 4,000$           5,225$           6,587$           65%

Final Owner Price 589,500$      670,000$      946,671$      61%

Lot, Development & House

Bloomberg Article Dated  June 3, 2021

Construction Cost increases



Causes of construction delays



Funding our Mission in Mason County

Retail store income

Private and civic group donations

Grant funding from local foundations

In-kind donation from local businesses and organizations

Volunteer hours that support 80% of our build

We also work with our lending partners to provide Home Owners the 

ability to apply for Down Payment Assistance grants and loans to help 

bridge the gap between qualified loan amount and cost to construct.

Funding needs include;

Support for increased infrastructure and development costs.

Partnering with City or Municipality to apply for available 

State or Federal funding.

Opportunities exist that can only be accessed via a mutual 

community partnership with a government entity.

We missed a viable grant opportunity in December and have another 

window of opportunity this Spring which will allow us to apply for 

Department of Commerce CDBG General Purpose Grant Funds.

Let's build a stronger community - together!





Lake Boulevard Project overview

Habitat purchased two parcels from a Mason County surplus land sale in Nov 

of 2020

Started preliminary lot design and review with the City of 

Shelton in the Spring of 2021.

Habitat is ready to move forward to build multiple homes for families in 

need if we can get help with infrastructure costs.  Without help we are 

building infrastructure not affordable homes.

Preliminary planning requires;

Lot subdivision to allow 6-8 homes.

Water system loop between Beverly and Lake Blvd..

Construction of a City street and alley ways dividing the lots.

Sewer and storm water infrastructure buildout.

Power system buildout and related capital fees.

Potential curb, gutter and sidewalks

Let's build a stronger community - together!





Summary

How can Habitat Mason and the City of Shelton 

create a partnership to access available State and 

Federal funding in an effort to help provide the 

opportunity of Home ownership for people of need 

here in our community?

Let's build a stronger community - together!



Construction





















Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date:  03/18/2022           
Brief Date:     04/19/2022 
Action Date:   05/03/2022 

 

Department: Executive 
   
Presented By: Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
YMCA Purchase and Sale 
 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
          Purchase and Sale Agreement 
          YMCA Lease 
          Surplus property Resolutions 
           Letter of Intent 
 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
JN 

     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In 2018 the City of Shelton and the South Sound YMCA entered into a lease agreement to facilitate the 
construction and operation of a YMCA facility in Shelton to serve the Shelton and Mason County community.  
Provisions of the lease agreement, specifically Section 7 titled “Options to Purchase” outline the procedures of 
property transfer and method of determining payment.  City Council determined this property surplus to the 
needs of the City in July 2018. 
 
Section 7 (A) requires the purchase to be completed within 20 years of lease execution, and this criterion has 
been met.  (B) requires written notice to the city outlining the intent to exercise the purchase option. The YMCA 
has provided a written notice, attached to this briefing, dated August 2, 2021.  The purchase amount reflected 
in the initial letter has changed significantly, but the intent remains the same.  (C) requires the property to be 
sold as if it was bare land at the time purchase is initiated.  Following subdivision of the subject property the 
value of the land has been determined to be $123,200.00 based on the Mason County taxable value of the land 
only following the partition process. The revenue associated with this sale will accrue to the Water Fund 
following closure of the transaction. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
Because the lease terms were negotiated in 2018, and the purchase methodology is outlined in Section 7 of the 
adopted lease agreement the process of property transfer is clearly outlined. 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The Water Fund of the city’s budget will receive the proceeds of this transaction.  $123,200.00 less fees 
associated with closing. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information on this item can be obtained by contacting the City Clerk. 

   
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move that City Council approve the purchase and sale agreement with South Sound YMCA as presented.” 









































 

 

 

August 2, 2021 

 

Attention City Manager 

City of Shelton 

525 W Cota St 

Shelton WA 98584 

 

Subject: Letter of intent to exercise option to purchase real estate 

 

The South Sound YMCA intends to exercise its option to purchase real estate at 

3101 Shelton Springs Road, Shelton WA. Per “City of Shelton Land Lease”, the 

South Sound YMCA has the option to purchase the property and desires to exercise 

its right. 

 

Per “City of Shelton Land Lease”, “the purchase price shall be no less than the 

actual assessed value, less improvements at time of execution of option.” According 

to Mason County Assessor’s Office the 2020 assessed value is $52,609.  

 

Seller: City of Shelton 

 

Buyer: South Sound YMCA 

 

Property: 3101 Shelton Springs Road, Shelton WA 98584 

 

Purchase Price: $52,609; cash 

 

Escrow: The Escrow Agent shall be Mason County Title. The Purchase Agreement 

shall be mutually prepared and executed by Buyer and Seller no later than ten (10) 

business days following the execution of this Letter of Intent. 

 

Per section 7d. each party will be responsible for 50% of escrow cost. The City of 

Shelton shall pay for an owner’s policy of title insurance and real estate excise tax 

and all other costs shall be dived equally between the parties. 

 

 

Kyle Cronk 

President 

South Sound YMCA 

206.390.0461 

cronkk@ssymca.net 

 

mailto:cronkk@ssymca.net


Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G2) 

Touch Date: 02/28/2022 
Brief Date:    04/19/2022 
Action Date: 05/03/2022 

Department: Public Works 
  
Presented By:    Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:   PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

   ILA with Mason Transit Authority  
 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1231-0222 
- ILA with MTA for Bus Shelter on RR 

Ave and Pacific Ct. 
- Exhibit A to ILA with MTA-Shelter 

Pullout and Cost Estimate  
- Exhibit B to ILA with MTA-Shelter 

and Pullout Plans   
- MTA signed ILA  
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head  

JH 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
JN  

     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

General Manager Amy Asher and Operations Manager Mike Ringgenberg with Mason Transit Authority 
identified the need for a bus shelter at Pacific Court and Railroad Ave to serve the Turning Pointe Survivor 
Advocacy Center.  City Engineer Ken Gill met with Amy and Mike to confirm design and agree on the cost 
estimate.   

The Western Gateway project will construct a concrete pad to support the shelter, sidewalk and curb across 
the frontage and a crosswalk.  PUD3 will relocate an existing timber pole and add a streetlight to supplement 
the existing one at the SW corner of Pacific Court and Railroad Ave to illuminate the shelter.  These 
improvements are shown on the plans (Exhibit B) of the attached interlocal agreement.  Brooke Kilts drafted the 
agreement so that MTA will pay the Shelton just over $71,000 for the improvements.   

City crews will remove the existing railroad tracks so that the shelter pad can be prepared by Miles 
Resources, LLC (our contractor for Western Gateway).     

General Manager Amy Asher presented the ILA to the MTA board on March 15th and has signed the ILA.   

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

Don’t build the shelter and direct staff to remove the scope from the project.   
 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The ILA allows MTA to pay Shelton $71,370.00 by end of 2022.    

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

Staff recommends: “I move to approve Resolution No. 1231-0222 as presented.” 



 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1231-0222 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN 
AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

 
 
WHEREAS, MTA has identified the need for a bus shelter on Railroad Ave E near Pacific Court to serve 
the Turning Point Advocacy Center and has agreed to a cost of $71,370.00 and timeline to reimburse 
Shelton for costs associated with the construction of the bus shelter and supporting improvements by 
December 2022; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton has completed the design and bidding process for a bus shelter; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, that the 
Interlocal Agreement with Mason Transit Authority is hereby accepted, and the City Manager is 
authorized to sign the Interlocal Agreement. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 19th day of April 2022 and PASSED on the 3rd day of May 2022 by the City Council 
of the City of Shelton. 
 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 

 



 
 

January 13, 2022        Page 1 of 6     

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

City of Shelton 

City Clerk 

525 West Cota Street 

Shelton, WA 98584 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF SHELTON AND MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY  
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR: 

CONSTRUCTION OF BUS PULLOUT AT RAILROAD AVENUE & PACIFIC 

COURT 

This is an lnterlocal Agreement (Agreement), dated this _____ day of __________ 

2022, by and between the City of Shelton, a Washington municipal corporation ("City') 

and Mason Transit Authority, a Washington municipal corporation ("MTA''), collectively 

referred to as the "Parties". In consideration of the mutual covenant s and conditions 

hereinafter provided, pursuant to the lnterlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 RCW, it is 

agreed as follows: 

 
RECITALS 

 

 
WHEREAS: The City is constructing street, pavement, sidewalk, waterline, and 

storm drainage improvements associated with the City's Western Gateway Railroad 

Avenue Improvement project from 8th Street to Pacific Court; and 

 
WHEREAS: MTA operates public transportation and bus service in the area subject 

to Railroad Avenue Project improvements, and has an interest in the design and construction 

of a bus pullout in the project area; and 

 
WHEREAS: There are significant benefits for the City, MTA, and members of the 

public provided by the appropriate design and construction of the proposed bus pullout as 

a part of the City project; and 

 
WHEREAS: The City and MTA have been working together to facilitate the design, 

construction, and funding of the bus pullout to serve the mutual interests of the City and MTA. 

 
Now, therefore, in consideration of their mutual covenants, conditions, and consideration, 

it is agreed between the City and MTA as follows: 

 

I. DESIGN AND DESIGN APPROVAL: Design of the subject bus pullout has 

been completed, reviewed, and mutually agreed by the City and MTA, with 

associated depiction and plans attached hereto as EXHIBIT A. 



 
 

January 13, 2022        Page 2 of 6     

 
2. CONSTRUCTION: The City shall construct the bus pullout, which includes 

storm improvements, paving, striping, curb and gutter, sidewalks, 

illumination, landscaping, and installation of the bus shelter. 

 
3. BUS SHELTER: The bus shelter structure shall be provided by MTA, at no 

cost to the City, in a timely manner to enable the shelter to be erected in 

conjunction with other on-site improvements by the siteworks contractor. 

 
4. FUNDING: MTA shall pay to the City the full cost of construction of the subject 

bus pullout ($71,370.00) no later than December 2022. This shall be the full 

amount of the MTA payment to the City, based on the Engineer’s construction 

cost estimate attached hereto as Exhibit B, regardless of actual bids for the 

work received by the City. MTA is responsible for any additional design or 

construction costs related to any changes to the plans, initiated or approved by MTA 

attached as Exhibit A. 

 
5. OWNERSHIP: The improvements, including storm drainage, paving, 

striping, curb and gutter, sidewalks, illumination, and landscaping, shall be 

owned and maintained by the City. The bus shelter structure shall be owned 

and maintained by MTA. 

 
6. There are no additional parties intended to be benefited under this 

agreement. There are no other agreements or representations, written or 

oral, concerning the subject matter of this agreement. 

 
7. This Agreement shall be governed for all purposes by the law of the State 

of Washington. The venue for any action arising under this Agreement 

shall be in Mason County, Washington, unless otherwise mutually agreed 

in writing by the parties. 

 
8. No amendment s or variations of the terms and conditions of this Agreement 

shall be valid unless they are in writing and signed by all the parties thereto. 

 
9. The Parties agree to perform any further acts and to execute and deliver 

any further document s as may be reasonably necessary to fully 
effectuate the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
10. None of the Parties shall be liable nor deemed to be in default for any delay or 

failure in performance under the Agreement or other interruption of service or 
employment resulting , directly or indirectly , from acts of God, civil or military 
authority, acts of the public enemy, terrorism, bomb threats, computer virus, 
epidemic, power outage, acts of war, accidents, fires, explosions, earthquakes , 
floods, failure of transportation, machinery, or supplies, vandalism, strikes or 
other work interruptions by the employees of  any  party,  or  any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control of the party affected thereby. However, each 



 
 

January 13, 2022        Page 3 of 6     

party shall utilize its best good faith efforts to perform under this Agreement in 
the event of any such occurrence or circumstance. 

 
11. This Agreement will be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. If 

any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable by a court or other governmental authority of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability, shall not affect any other term or 
provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and affect. 

 
12. ADMINISTRATION OF AGREEMENT: The City of Shelton Public Works 

Department will administer this Agreement for the City. The designated point 
of contact for the City is: Ken Gill, City Engineer; (360) 432-5144; 
ken.gill@sheltonwa.gov. The designated point of contact for MTA is: Amy 
Asher; (360) 432-5755; aasher@masontransit.org. 

 
13. DURATION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall take effect upon execution of 

the Agreement by both the City and MTA and shall remain in effect until all 
obligations established in this Agreement are completed by both Parties, and until 
the City's governing body grants Final Acceptance at the time of project 
completion. 

 
14. NO LEGAL/ADMINISTRATIVE ENTITY CREATED: No separate legal or 

administrative entity is created by or pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

15. INDEMNIFICATION/DEFENSE/HOLD HARMLESS: The City will protect, defend, 
indemnify, and save harmless MTA, its officers, employees, and agents from any 
and all costs, claims, judgments, or awards of damages arising out of or in any 
way resulting from the performance of this Agreement by the City, except for costs, 
claims, judgments, and awards of damage for injuries or damages arising out of or 
in any way resulting from negligent or allegedly negligent acts or omissions of 
MTA. MTA will protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, 
employees and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments or awards of 
damages arising out of or in any way resulting from negligent or allegedly negligent 
acts or omissions of MTA, it’s officers, employees, or agents. 

 
16. NO ASSIGNMENT: The Parties shall not assign this Agreement or any 

interest, obligation, or duty herein without the express written consent of the 
other party. 

 
17. NOTICES: All notices and payments hereunder shall be sent or delivered to the 

following respective addresses: 
 

City: Ken Gill, City Engineer, 525 West Cota St., Shelton, WA 98584 
 
MTA: Amy Asher, 790 E. Johns Prairie Road, Shelton, WA 98584 

 
or to such other respective addresses as either Party may hereafter 
designate in writing. All notices and payments mailed by regular post 
(including first class) shall be deemed to be given on the second business 



 
 

January 13, 2022        Page 4 of 6     

day following the date of mailing. Notices and payments sent by certified or 
registered mail shall be deemed to have been given on the day next 
following the date of mailing. For all types of mail, the postmark affixed by 
the United States Postal Service shall be conclusive evidence of the date of 
mailing. 

 
18. AUTHORITY: Both Parties represent that by appropriate action by their 

respective governing bodies, they are authorized to enter into this Agreement 
and have finance approval for payments specified herein. 

 
19. NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY: The City and MTA shall not discriminate in 

the performance of this Agreement based on race, color, national origin, sex, 
sexual orientation, age, religion, creed, marital status, military or veteran 
status, the presence of any physical, mental and/or sensory disability, or any 
other status protected by law. 

 
20. FILING OR POSTING: This document shall be filed pursuant to Chapter 

39.34 RCW, or alternatively, listed by subject on either of the Party' s 
websites. 

 
IN WITNESS WHE REOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this agreement 

effective the date first above written. 
 
 
 
City of Shelton: 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Jeff Niten, City Manager      Date 
 
 
Mason Transit Authority: 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Amy Asher, General Manager     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

January 13, 2022        Page 5 of 6     

EXHIBIT A: Design Plans 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

January 13, 2022        Page 6 of 6     

EXHIBIT B: Engineers Construction Cost Estimate 
 
 
    



NO. ITEM  QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Project Temporary Traffic Control (S.P. 1-10.5) 1 LS 7,000.00$          7,000.00$           

2 Clearing and Grubbing  (S.P. 2-01.5) 1 LS 2,000.00$          2,000.00$           

3 Ex, Backfill, Compact & Grading Roadway, Incl. Haul (S.P. 2-03.5) 30 CY 45.00$               1,350.00$           

4 Crushed Surfacing Base Course (S.P. 4-04.5) 55 TN 30.00$               1,650.00$           

5 Crushed Surfacing Top Course (S.P. 4-04.5) 30 TN 30.00$               900.00$              

6 HMA Cl. 1/2 Inch PG58H-22 for Pavement Repair (S.P. 5-04.5) 50 TN 100.00$             5,000.00$           

7 Ductile Iron Storm Sewer Pipe, 12 In. Diam (Incl. Bedding) (S.P. 7-04.5) 200 LF 50.00$               10,000.00$         

8 Catch Basin, Type 1 (S.P. 7-05.5) 3 EA 1,700.00$          5,100.00$           

9 Bank Run Gravel for Trench Backfill (S.P. 7-08.5) 20 TN 35.00$               700.00$              

10 Erosion and Water Pollution Control (S.P. 8-01.5) 1 LS 500.00$             500.00$              

11 Cement Concrete Traffic Curb and Gutter (S.P. 8-04.5) 185 LF 80.00$               14,800.00$         

12 Concrete Bus Shelter Pad (S.P. 8-14.5) 10 SY 80.00$               800.00$              

13 Cement Concrete Sidewalk (S.P. 8-14.5) 60 SY 60.00$               3,600.00$           

14 Install Bus Shelter (S.P. 8-12.5) 1 LS 1,500.00$          1,500.00$           

$54,900.00
$0.00

$54,900.00

DESIGN ENGINEERING $8,235.00

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT $8,235.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST $71,370.00

Note:

Calculated By: Ken Gill, P.E.

 Updated 2-10-2022

CITY OF SHELTON
 WESTERN GATEWAY PROJECT

BUS PULL-OUT AREA
ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE

CITY OF SHELTON

This estimate does not include costs of relocation of the utility pole and guy wire by the utility company and removal of the 
railroad tracks by the City.

Subtotal:
Sales Tax @ 0.0 % (W.S. Rev. Rule 171):

ENGINEER'S CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

kgill
Text Box
EXHIBIT A 



kgill
Text Box
EXHIBIT B 



kgill
Text Box
EXHIBIT B 



kgill
Text Box
EXHIBIT B 



























Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G3) 

Touch Date: 01/18/2022 
Brief Date: 04/19/2022 
Action Date:   05/03/2022 

Department: Administrative Services  
 
Presented By: Michelle Sutherland, Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Revision of City Manager Contract 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
 Resolution No. 1235-0322 
 City Manager Contract 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
 

     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Minor revisions of the City Manager contract per City Council. Revised were Section 3.f. to allow the City 
Manager to attend two state conferences per year; Section 3.j. allot vacation of 160 hours per year, striking 40 
hours of unpaid executive leave; Section 5, strike language stating the performance review will occur in 
advance of the adoption of the annual operating budget. 
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
None 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to approve Resolution No. 1235-0322 as presented”. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1235-0322 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, 

MASON COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE EMPLOYMENT 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND CITY MANAGER  

JEFFREY NITEN 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Shelton desires to amend the employment agreement 

between the City of Shelton and Jeffrey Niten as the City Manager for the City pursuant to Chapter 

35A.13 RCW, and  

 

WHEREAS, the City and Mr. Niten desire to provide for certain procedures, benefits, and 

requirements regarding his employment with the City. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, 

Washington, that the amended employment agreement attached hereto and incorporated in 

“Attachment A” is approved. 

 

INTRODUCED on the 19th day of April 2022 and PASSED by the City Council on this the 3rd 

day of May 2022. 

 

Attest: 

 

___________________     ________________________ 

City Clerk       Mayor Onisko 

 

                      

         



City Manager Employment Agreement 
2022 Amendment  

 
 This agreement is made and entered into between the City of Shelton, Washington, 
hereinafter referred to as the CITY, and Jeffrey Niten, hereinafter referred to as the CITY 
MANAGER, pursuant to these terms and conditions: 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2018, the City hired Jeffrey Niten as City Manager of the City of Shelton; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties executed an Employment Agreement on December 11, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend certain terms of the 2018 Employment 
Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the City Manager agree to the following: 
 
 Section 1. Scope of Authority, Duties, and Responsibilities. The City Manager shall 
assist the City Council in the performance of its duties and shall do all things required of him by 
the City Council to assist in the administration of the business of the City government; and shall 
oversee and supervise the various City departments and shall assist in the coordination and 
liaison of the City business between the City Council and the various City officers and City 
departments.  

 
Consistent with RCW 35A.13.080, the City Manager’s powers and duties shall be as 

follows.  The City Manager shall have authority to delegate the responsibilities outlined in this 
chapter as the City Manager deems appropriate. 

 
a. To have general supervision over the administrative affairs of the City; 

 
b. To appoint and remove at any time all department heads, officers, and employees of the 

City, except members of the Council, and subject to the provisions of any applicable law, 
rule, collectively bargained agreement, or regulation relating to civil service; 
 

c. To attend all meetings of the Council at which his attendance may be required by that 
body; 

 
d. To see that all laws and ordinances are faithfully executed, subject to the authority 

which the Council may grant the mayor to maintain law and order in times of 
emergency; 
 

e. To recommend for adoption by the Council such measures as he may deem necessary or 
expedient; 
 



f. To prepare and submit to the Council such reports as may be required by that body or 
as he may deem it advisable to submit; 
 

g. To keep the Council fully advised of the financial condition of the City and its future 
needs; 
 

h. To prepare and submit to the Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year, as required 
by chapter 35A.33 RCW, and to be responsible for its administration upon adoption; 
 

i. To perform such other duties as the Council may determine by ordinance or resolution. 
 

In addition, consistent with Shelton Municipal Code § 2.18.030, the City Manager shall have 
the following specific duties.  

 
a. Under the direction and authority of the Council, he shall supervise, administer and 

coordinate the activities and functions of the various City officers and departments in 
carrying out the requirements of City ordinances and the policies of the City Council, 
and to administer and supervise the carrying out of the decisions, regulations and 
policies of the various City departments, as designated from time to time by the Council. 
 

b. He shall regularly report to the Council concerning the status of all assignments, duties, 
projects and functions of the various City offices and departments. 

 
c. He shall supervise all purchasing and expenditures by the various City offices, 

departments, commissions and boards. 
 

d. He shall meet with the City Council as often as is necessary to keep them informed of 
the status and result of departmental operations and projects. 
 

e. He shall represent the City of Shelton at meetings with other governmental units, 
agencies, commissions and associations as directed by the Council. 
 

f. He shall undertake special projects at the request of the City Council. 
 

g. He shall be informed about and remain cognizant of federal and state grant and loan 
opportunities that could be of pecuniary value to the City of Shelton, and shall alert the 
proper City officials to any opportunities for federal and state grants which could benefit 
the City of Shelton. 
 

Section 2. Hours of Work. The City Manager acknowledges that the proper performance 
of the duties of the City Manager will require the City Manager to generally observe normal 
business hours and will also require the performance of necessary services outside of normal 
business hours. The City Manager agrees to devote such additional time as may be necessary 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=35A.33


for the full and proper performance of the City Manager’s duties and responsibilities and that 
the compensation herein provided includes compensation for all such services. The City 
Manager shall remain in the exclusive employ of the City and shall not accept any outside 
professional employment that in any way interferes with the performance of the City 
Manager’s duties. 
 
 Section 3. Salary and Benefits. The City shall compensate the City Manager with the 
following compensation and benefits: 
 

a. The City shall compensate the City Manager with an annual salary of $130,000 in the 
first year of employment. As required by SMC §2.18.040, the salary of the City Manager 
shall be approved by the City Council in the annual budget. The City Manager’s salary 
may not be reduced unless budget restraints require an across-the-board reduction in 
non-represented City staff salaries. Any such reduction shall be no greater than the 
percentage reduction applied to other staff salaries. 
 

b. The City Council may, in its discretion, elect to compensate the City Manager with an 
annual salary bonus not to exceed 5% of the City Manager’s annual salary. Such bonus 
may only be awarded upon the completion of established performance standards and 
goals that exceed normal employment requirements. These performance standards and 
goals shall be mutually agreed upon by the Parties and formalized in writing. 
 

c. The City Manager shall receive Social Security, Medicare, and L&I benefits as may be 
required by law. The City Manager shall receive medical benefits to the same extent as 
other exempt management staff.  

 
d. The City shall pay the annual premium toward the purchase of a life insurance policy 

having an aggregate amount equal to one year of the City Manager’s base salary.  
 

e. The City shall match deferred compensation toward the Washington State PERS 
deferred compensation program, up to a maximum of 2% of base salary. 

 
f. The City shall pay for memberships to the International City Manager’s Association and 

the Washington City Council Management Association. The City shall pay for two travel 
and expenses to two state conferences per year. The City Council may allow additional 
funding for travel and expenses to additional professional conferences and trainings if 
the budget allows. 

 
g. The City Manager shall receive an automobile allowance of $300 per month, in lieu of 

mileage reimbursement. 
 

h. The City Manager shall receive a one-time stipend of $3,000 for moving expenses. 
 



i. The City Manager shall be provided with a cellular mobile phone and a laptop computer 
or tablet for conducting City business. 

 
j. The City Manager shall be allotted 160 hours of paid vacation leave time each year, 

which shall rollover from year to year but shall not exceed a maximum of 240 hours.  
 

k. The City Manager shall receive the same sick leave benefits authorized by the City for 
other management staff. 

 
 Section 4. Term, Removal, and Resignation. The City Manager shall begin employment 
as the City Manager on January 14, 2019 and shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council, 
subject to the provisions in this Agreement, the City code, and state law. 
 

a. The City Manager may be removed by a majority vote of the City Council. At least thirty 
days before the effective date of his removal, the City Manager must be furnished with 
a formal statement in the form of a resolution passed by a majority vote of the City 
Council stating the Council’s intention to remove him and the reasons therefore. Upon 
passage of the resolution stating the Council’s intention to remove the City Manager, 
the Council by a similar vote may suspend him from duty, but his pay shall continue 
until his removal becomes effective. 

 
b. The City Manager may, within thirty days from the date of service upon him of a copy 

of the City Council’s resolution described in §4(a), reply in writing to the resolution. In 
the event no reply is timely filed, the resolution shall upon the thirty-first day from the 
date of such service constitute the final resolution removing the City Manager and his 
services shall terminate upon that day. If a reply shall be timely filed with the City Clerk, 
the City Council shall fix a time for a public hearing upon the question of the City 
Manager’s removal and a final resolution removing the manager shall not be adopted 
until a public hearing has been had. The action of the City Council in removing the City 
Manager shall be final. 

 
c. In the event that the City Manager chooses to terminate his appointment as City 

Manager, he shall provide the City Council with a written statement of resignation at 
least thirty days prior to the effective date of the resignation.  

 

Section 5. Severance Pay for Involuntary Termination without Cause. If the City Council 
terminates the City Manager’s appointment without cause, the City Manager shall receive a 
lump sum equal to six (6) months’ base salary at the time of the City Manager’s termination. In 
addition, the City shall pay for health, medical, and dental coverage contributions to continue 
existing coverage pursuant to COBRA for six (6) months following the date of termination. The 
City Manager shall not receive any severance in the event that he resigns or he is terminated 
for cause. 

 



For purposes of this Agreement, any one of the following shall be grounds to terminate 
this Agreement for cause: 

 
a. Any willful, knowing, grossly negligent, or negligent breach, disregard or habitual 

neglect of any provision of this Agreement, or any willful, knowing, grossly negligent, 
or negligent breach, disregard or habitual neglect of any duty or obligation required 
to be performed by a City Manager under City code and/or the laws of the United 
States or the State of Washington. 

 
b. Conduct relating to City employment that violates Shelton Personnel Policies or 

other reasonable standards of professional conduct in a substantial manner. 
 

c. Conviction of any criminal act relating to employment with the City or any other act 
or non-act affecting the ability of the City Manager to carry out the duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 
 

d. Conviction of any felony offense. 
 

e. Mental or physical unfitness that prevents the City Manager from carrying out the 
essential functions and duties of the position of City Manager.  

 

Section 5. Evaluation and Professional Development. The City Council shall review and 
evaluate the performance of the City Manager at least once annually. Annual performance 
review shall be in accordance with criteria developed by the City Council.  

 
Section 6. Indemnification. Pursuant to and subject to SMC §2.82, the City shall defend 

the City Manager and his marital community from any claim, suit, or other legal action brought 
against the City Manager in conducting business of the City where the City Manager’s alleged 
acts or omissions were done in good faith and were, or in good faith are purported to be, within 
the scope of his official duties. This does not apply to alleged criminal acts unless the City 
Council so determines in its discretion and in accordance with law. The City Manager shall be 
covered under the City’s liability insurance policy for covered acts or omissions occurring in the 
performance of his duties as a City Official, on the same basis and to the same extent other City 
Officials are so covered. The City shall bear the full cost of any public official bond required of 
the City Manager under any law or ordinance. 
 
 Section 7. General Provisions. The text herein shall constitute the entire Agreement 
between the parties. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is 
held unlawful, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion thereof, 
shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect. The 
parties agree to immediately renegotiate any part or provision in this agreement rendered or 



declared invalid. The parties may amend this Agreement only by express written consent. This 
Agreement is contingent upon approval by the City Council. 
 
 Section 8. Waiver of Residence Requirement. Pursuant to RCW 35A.15.050, the City 
Council agrees to waive the requirement that the City Manager reside within the City, so long 
as the City Manager agrees to reside within the Shelton Urban Growth Area or within 5 miles of 
the City. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  
 
 
FOR THE CITY:     CITY MANAGER: 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko  Date  Jeffrey Niten   Date  
 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G4) 

Touch Date:  04/05/2022           
Brief Date:     04/19/2022 
Action Date:   05/03/2022 

 

Department: Community Development 
   
Presented By: Mark Ziegler 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Hearing Examiner Services 
Contract 
 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
          Contract 
 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
 

     
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The Hearing Examiner performs all duties established in Chapter 2.36 and of the Shelton Municipal Code. 
Other pertinent Municipal Code sections include Title 15 (Water); Title 17 (Permit Review and Processing); Title 
18 (Building, Construction, Mobile/Manufactured Homes and Flood Damage Prevention); Chapter 19 
(Subdivisions), and Chapter 20 (Zoning) as well as such other services as may be prescribed by Shelton 
Municipal Code as it now exists or is hereafter amended.  
 
The bulk of the Examiner’s workload is expected to be quasi-judicial land use cases, including major plats, 
conditional use permits, binding site plans, variances, shoreline permits, appeals of certain administrative 
actions, site-specific rezones, etc. In general Shelton’s Hearing Examiner holds public hearings and decides 
matters related to the powers as outlined in Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 2.36.110 including but not limited 
to:  

• Request for variances and conditional use permits  
• Preliminary plat approvals  
• Substantial development permits  

 • Appeals from administrative decisions 
 
Staff advertised a request for qualifications on February 4, 2022 and two firms provided responses.  Sound Law 
Center was the most qualified firm based on staff review. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
  
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The Hearing Examiner Services are offset approximately 80% by fees associated with the specific hearing. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

   
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to approve the contract with Sound Law Center for Hearing Examiner Services.” 



    

Page 1 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 

City of Shelton Hearing Examiner Services 
 
This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Shelton, Washington, ("the City") and 
Andrew Reeves ("the Consultant"), of Sound Law Center, LLC, whose principal office is located 
at 4500 9th Avenue NE, Suite 300, Seattle WA 98105. 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have Hearing Examiner Services performed for 
its citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 2.36 allows the City Council to appoint a Land 
Use Hearing Examiner through a professional services contract “for the term and functions 
deemed appropriate by the Council”; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Consultant perform such services pursuant to the 
following terms and conditions;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions set forth 
below, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant.  The Consultant shall perform 

services, as described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as if fully set forth in this contract.   

 
2. Compliance with Applicable Industry Standards, Laws and Requirements. In 

performing such services, the Consultant shall at all times comply with all federal, state 
and local laws applicable to the performance of such services. It is the Consultant’s 
responsibility to identify and comply with such laws, including but not limited to 
Washington’s laws against discrimination; Washington’s Industrial Safety and Health 
Act and associated regulations; Washington’s Unemployment Compensation provisions, 
and any other applicable laws, statutes, regulations or requirements otherwise applicable 
to the services provided under this Agreement. 

 
3. Registration, Licensing and Bonding. Consultant shall at all times maintain appropriate 

registration, licensing and bonding applicable to professional services to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement and has provided or will provide written evidence of the same 
to the City upon execution of this Agreement, and shall require and produce the same 
with respect to any subcontractors/assignees (if the same are authorized by the City to 
perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement). 

 
4. Time Devoted. The Consultant shall devote such time as reasonably necessary for the 

satisfactory performance of the services under this Agreement. Should Client require 
additional services not included under this Agreement, the Consultant shall make 
reasonable effort to provide such additional services within the time schedule without 
decreasing the effectiveness of the performance of services required under this 
Agreement and shall be compensated for such additional services as agreed between the 



    

Page 2 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

Parties. 
 
5. Provisions of Facilities, Equipment, Personnel. The Consultant shall furnish the 

facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to perform the services required under this 
Agreement unless otherwise provided herein. 

 
6. Compensation and Method of Payment.  The City shall pay the Consultant for services 

rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an approvable invoice as well as the form 
titled, Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
The Consultant shall provide Hearing Examiner services at a cost per the fee schedule as 
described in Exhibit “A” with a maximum one-hour time allotment for travel to and from 
the hearing (when necessary). 
 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit “C”, Tax Identification Number, to the 
City prior to or along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required 
to have a City Business license and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 

 
7. Provisions for Changes in Scope of Consultant Services.  The Consultant agrees to 

perform those services which are described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.  Unless 
modified in writing and agreed to by both parties, the duties of the Consultant shall not be 
construed to exceed those services.  The City and the Consultant agree that if additional 
duties are to be performed by the Consultant in the prosecution of this work, the 
Consultant shall submit an additional or supplemental work program and upon the City’s 
approval, shall be compensated on the same terms of this contract as previously stated, or 
in a manner mutually agreed upon by both parties. 

 
8. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 

commencing on the date of the last signature affixed hereto and ending one year after that 
date, unless sooner terminated under the provisions hereinafter specified. Provided, 
however, that this Agreement shall automatically renew each year unless one of the 
Parties gives the other thirty (30) days advance notice prior to the end date of the one-
year term that the Party desires to terminate the contract at the end of the term.   

 
9. Ownership and Use of Documents.  All documents, drawings, specifications, and other 

materials produced by the Consultant in connection with the services rendered under this 
Agreement shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they are made 
is executed or not.  The City shall hold the Consultant harmless for the City's use of the 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other materials outside of the project intended. 

 
10. Independent Consultant.  The Consultant and the City agree that the Consultant is an 

Independent Contractor with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement. 
 Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and 
employee between the parties.  Neither the Consultant nor any employee of the 
Consultant shall be entitled to any benefits accorded City employees by virtue of the 
services provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not be responsible for paying, 
withholding, or otherwise deducting any customary state or federal payroll deductions, 



    

Page 3 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

including but not limited to FICA, FUTA, state industrial insurance, state workers 
compensation, or otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to the 
Consultant or any employee of the Consultant. 

 
In accordance with Shelton Municipal Code, for the privilege of accepting or executing a 
contract with the City of Shelton, irrespective of whether goods or services are delivered 
within or outside the city, or whether the person’s office is within or outside the city, the 
consultant is subject to the licensing requirements and business and occupation tax levied 
in SMC Chapters 5.04.030 and 3.52.060. 

 
11. Indemnification / Hold Harmless 

Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits 
including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of 
the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused 
by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Consultant’s negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant’s waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. 
 This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
A. Insurance Term 

 
The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, 
representatives, or employees. 

 
B. No Limitation 

 
The Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the Agreement shall not be 
construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such 
insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in 
equity. 

 
C. Minimum Scope of Insurance 

 
The Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types and coverage described below: 

 



    

Page 4 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance shall be obtained by the Consultant, Sound Law 
Center, LLC, or any of its Independent Contractors covering all owned, non-owned, hired 
and leased vehicles (as applicable).  Coverage shall be as least as broad as Insurance 
Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01.  The Consultant affirms that each of its 
Independent Contractors serving the City will maintain appropriate individual automobile 
insurance coverage throughout the course of the contract term between the parties. Both 
parties acknowledge that the work the Consultant performs under this contract does not 
involve driving or the operation of a vehicle on behalf of, or for, the City. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO 
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 
stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and advertising injury.  The Public 
Entity shall be named as an additional insured under the Consultant’s Commercial 
General Liability insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the Public 
Entity using an additional insured endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Washington. 

 
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 
 
D. Minimum Amounts of Insurance 

 
The Consultant shall maintain the following insurance limits: 

 
1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
$2,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 

 
3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
$2,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 

 
E. Other Insurance Provision 

 
The Consultant’s Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance 
policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they shall be primary insurance as 
respect the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained 
by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
F. Acceptability of Insurers 

 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. 

 



    

Page 5 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

G. Verification of Coverage 
 

The Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the 
amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured 
endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant before 
commencement of the work. 

 
H. Notice of Cancellation 

 
The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any policy cancellation 
within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 

 
I. Failure to Maintain Insurance 

 
Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain the insurance as required shall constitute 
a material breach of contract, upon which the City may, after giving five business days 
notice to the Consultant to correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its 
discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection 
therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant from the City. 

 
J. City Full Availability of Consultant Limits 

 
If the Consultant maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the 
City shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such limits 
maintained by the Consultant are greater than those required by this Agreement or 
whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of liability 
lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 
12. Record Keeping and Reporting. 
 

A. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, 
property, financial, and programmatic records, which sufficiently and properly 
reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended and services performed 
pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall also maintain such other 
records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure proper accounting of 
all funds contributed by the City to the performance of this Agreement. 

 
B. These records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination 

hereof unless permission to destroy them is granted by the Office of the Archivist 
in accordance with RCW Chapter 40.14 and by the City. 

 
13. Audits and Inspections.  The records and documents with respect to all matters covered 

by this Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit as allowed 
by law during the performance of this Agreement.  The City shall have the right to 
conduct an audit of the Consultant's financial statement and condition and to a copy of 



    

Page 6 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

the results of any such audit or other examination performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 

 
14. Termination.  This Agreement may at any time be terminated for any reason by the City 

upon giving to the Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of the City's intention to 
terminate the same. If the Consultant's insurance coverage is canceled for any reason, the 
City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately.  Consultant will be 
paid for satisfactory work performed through the date of termination. 

 
15. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant shall not discriminate against any 

employee, applicant for employment, or any person seeking the services of the 
Consultant under this Agreement on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, 
national origin, marital status, or presence of any sensory, mental, or physical handicap, 
or any other protected class. 

 
16. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any 

portion of the services contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent 
of the City. 

 
17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and Exhibits A, B, & C contain the entire 

agreement between the parties hereto, and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, 
regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind either 
party.  Either party may request changes to the Agreement.  Proposed changes, which are 
mutually agreed upon and signed by each parties authorized signatory, shall be 
incorporated by written amendments to this Agreement. 

 
18. Notices. The designated project representative for the City of Shelton is:  
 
   Mark Ziegler 
   Community Development Director  
   City of Shelton  
   525 West Cota Street 
   Shelton, Washington 98584 
   Phone number: (360) 432-5194 

Email:  mark.ziegler@sheltonwa.gov 
 

Notices to the City shall be sent to the address noted above.  
 

The designated project representative for the Consultant is Andrew Reeves. Notices to 
the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 

 
   Contact:  Andrew Reeves     

Address:  4500 9th Avenue NE, Suite 300 
     Seattle, WA 98105     
Phone      916-541-3543  

   Email:     andrew@soundlawcenter.com       
 



    

Page 7 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

19. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorneys’ Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  In the event any suit, 
arbitration, or other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the 
parties specifically understand and agree that venue shall be exclusively in Mason 
County, Washington.  The prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled to its 
attorneys’ fees and costs of suit. 

 
20. Representation of Consultant.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no 

conflict of interest in performing any of the services set forth in Exhibit "A."  In the 
event that the Consultant is asked to perform services for a project with which it may 
have a conflict, it will disclose such conflict to the City.  At the discretion of the City, the 
City may direct the Consultant to refrain from entering into a contract with 
representatives of the conflicting project. 

 

21. Invoice and Activity Report.  The Consultant shall provide an activity report with each 
invoice highlighting services provided during the billing period, upcoming activities, and 
emerging management issues. 

 
 

CONTRACT SIGNATURES 
 

 
DATED this      day of     , 2022 
 
 
CITY OF SHELTON          CONSULTANT 
 
By:       By: 

_________________________________   
Eric Onisko,      Andrew Reeves, Managing Attorney 
Mayor, City of Shelton    Sound Law Center, LLC 
 
    
Attest/Authenticated:     
      
 
 
 
_______________________________   
City Clerk (or witness to signature) 
 



    

Page 8 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Contract Scope & Fees 
 

The Consultant shall perform all duties required of the Hearing Examiner, as detailed in the 
Shelton Municipal Code, including presiding over quasi-judicial land use application hearings, 
administrative appeal hearings, and other matters assigned by the Council. 

 
For these services, the City shall pay the consultant a monthly “base” fee of $825.00.  This 
amount covers the Consultant’s administrative costs and ensures that Andrew Reeves (or a pro-
temp hearing officer) is available to conduct hearings for the City of Shelton on land use and 
other quasi-judicial matters assigned to the Hearing Examiner.  As part of the base fee:   
 
• The City may select one regular, “guaranteed” 3-hour monthly time slot, in consultation 

with the Consultant, wherein a hearing officer will be available to serve the City in 
providing hearings using remote meeting technology.  This could be a daytime or evening 
slot. 

• SLC will prepare Hearing Examiner Rules of Procedure specific to the City and update 
them, as needed.   

• SLC will produce an Annual Report detailing the matters it has heard along with 
recommendations on improvements to the hearing examiner process and/or municipal 
code. 

• SLC will provide one annual training session for City staff on a mutually agreed upon 
topic. 
  

The monthly base fee does not cover fees associated with specific hearings.  The Consultant’s 
contract rate for hearing examiner services is $225/hr.  All appeals are billed at the hourly rate. 
 
The following commonly heard application permits shall be billed at the following flat rates: 
 

$1,500 $3,000 $3,850 
Single-Family Residential 
Variances 

Commercial/Industrial 
Variances and CUPs 

Multi-Permit Applications 

Single-Family Residential 
Conditional Use Permits 

Multi-Family Residential 
Variances and CUPs 

Preliminary Plats 
 

 Single-Family Residential 
Reasonable Use Permits 

Shoreline Permits (other than 
stand-alone SSDPs) 

 Shoreline Substantial 
Development Permits 

Special Use Permits 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



    

Page 9 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
City of Shelton 
Billing Voucher 

 
To: City of Shelton     Submittal No.:__________ 
 525 West Cota 
 Shelton, Washington 98584 
 Phone: (360) 426-9731 
 FAX: (360) 426-7746 
 
Consultant: _______________________________________ Telephone: (     ) ______________ 
Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
Project Title: __________________________________________________________________ 
Contract Period: ______________________ Reporting Period: __________________________ 
Amount requested this invoice: $________________ 
 
Invoice Number: ________________ Date of Invoice: ______________ (Attach Invoice) 
 
________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
BUDGET SUMMARY 
 
Total contract amount  $____________________ 
Previous payments  $____________________ 
Current request  $____________________ 
Total requested this 
   contract to date  $____________________ 
Balance remaining  $____________________ 
 
Note:  If applicable, submit a separate voucher for each project, which is funded by your City of 
Shelton contract. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
For Department Use Only 

 
____________________________   Date:        
Community Development Director  
 
 
 



    

Page 10 of 10 
__Draft Contract Hearing Examiner Services                                                                                                                                       
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CITY OF SHELTON 
525 West Cota Street 
Shelton, WA  98584 

Phone: (360) 426-9731 
FAX: (360) 426-7746 

 
TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

 
In order for you to receive reimbursement from the City of Shelton, we must have either a Tax Identification 
Number or a Social Security Number.  The Internal Revenue Code requires a Form 1099 for payments to every 
person or organization other than a corporation for services performed in the course of trade or business.   
 
Please complete the following information request form and return it to the City of Shelton before or along the 
submittal of the first billing voucher. 
 

 

Please check the appropriate category: 
 
 ___Corporation  ___Partnership  ___Government Agency 
 ___Individual/Proprietor ___Other (please explain) 
 
 
Tax Identification #: ______________________ 
 
UBI #: _________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name:_______________________________________________________ 
 
Print Title:________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Name:____________________________________________________ 
 
Business Address: __________________________________________________ 
 
Business Phone:____________________________________ 
 
Business e-mail: ___________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________  ______________________ 
Authorized Signature (required)   Date 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G5) 

Touch Date:  04/12/2022  
Brief Date:     05/03/2022  
Action Date:  05/03/2202 

Department:  City Clerk 
   
Presented By:  Donna Nault 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
   Lodging Tax Advisory Committee    
   Appointments for 2022 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Renewal Letters    

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
 

     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Each year, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) reviews applications requesting funds for activities or 
facilities that promote tourism in our community.  The committee consists of five members.    
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
According to RCW 67.28.1817, the LTAC must be appointed by the legislative body.  The committee must 
contain at least five members, including at least two members who are representative of the businesses 
required to collect the lodging tax, at least two members who are involved in activities authorized to be 
funded by the lodging tax, and one member being an elected official of the City.  The mayor serves 
as the chair of the committee. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A   
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to approve the appointment of Leanne Gunter, Duane Wilson, Space Kim, and Howard Kim to the 
LTAC for the calendar year of 2022”.   










	1 Agenda_20220503
	2 2022 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20220503
	4 Draft Minutes_20220405
	5 Draft Minutes_20220412_Study Session
	6 2022 PW Week Proclamation
	7 Habitat Presentation City of Shelton
	8 YMCA Purchase_Briefing
	9 City of Shelton Land Lease
	10 Resolution No. 1131-0518 Surplus of City Property
	11 Resolution No. 1132-0618 Declaring Certain Real Estate under City Ownership Surplus
	12 Letter of Intent to Exercise Right to Purchase to City
	13 Briefing_Res. 1231-0222 ILA with MTA
	14 Res 1231-0222 ILA with MTA for bus shelter
	15 ILA with MTA for Bus Shelter on RR Ave and Pacific Ct
	16 EXHIBIT A to ILA with MTA-Shelter and Pullout Cost Estimate
	17 EXHIBIT B to ILA with MTA-Shelter and Pullout Plans
	18 MTA Signed ILA
	19 Agenda Briefing for Revision to City Manager Contract
	20 Resolution No. 1235_0322 Amended employment agreement
	21 2022 CM agreement
	22 Agenda Briefing Hearing Examiner Contract
	23 Shelton-SLC Hearing Examiner Professional Services Contract (Signed by SLC 4.22.22)
	24 Agenda Briefing LTAC
	25 LTAC Renewal Letters

